




Planning and Zoning Commission  
Meeting Minutes 

 

Bastrop Planning & Zoning Minutes April 26, 2018 Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 
 
The City of Bastrop Planning and Zoning Commission met Thursday, April 26, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. 
in the Bastrop City Council Chambers, 1311 Chestnut Street, Bastrop, Texas.  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
  
Debbie Moore called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.   
 
Debbie Moore    Present 
Patrick Connell   Present 
Dianna Rose     Present 
Cynthia Meyer    Present 
Alyssa Halle-Schramm Present 
Matthew Lassen   Present  
Sue Ann Fruge   Absent 
Richard Gartman   Present 
Cheryl Lee    Present  
 
2. CITIZEN COMMENTS   
 
There were no citizen comments. 

3. ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION   
 
3A. Consider action to approve meeting minutes from the March 29, 2018 Planning & 

Zoning Commission Regular Meeting. 
 
Patrick Connell made a motion to approve the meeting minutes from the February 22, 2018 
Planning & Zoning Commission Regular Meeting. Richard Gartman seconded the motion and the 
motion carried unanimously.  

3B.Public Hearing and consider action to recommend approval of a Conditional Use Permit 
to allow a 120-foot water standpipe to exceed the 35-foot maximum height allowance 
at 113 Tahitian Drive, Lot A of Tahitian Village, Unit 1, an area zoned C-2, Commercial-
2, within the city limits of Bastrop, and forward to the next City Council Meeting. 

Jennifer Bills presented to the Commission the information that was given in the staff report and 
gave a PowerPoint presentation.  

The Commission made the following comments on the proposed CUP for the Standpipe:  

Do houses destroyed by an Act of God have to be rebuilt with historic standards?  
• The applicant stated the standpipe would be painted either sky blue or white to provide 

the least obtrusive visual effect. 



Planning and Zoning Commission  
Meeting Minutes 

 

Bastrop Planning & Zoning Minutes April 26, 2018 Page 2 of 2 
 

• The Commission requested that the tower be labeled with identifying information, such as 
“Welcome to Bastrop” as the tower will be on the eastern edge of the city along Highway 
71.  They asked that this follow the same criteria that is being applied to other water 
towers. 

• The Commission asked if the addition of this facility would enable the BCWCID #2 to 
provide fire flow to Tahitian Drive. The applicant stated this would be a first step towards 
greater capacity.   
 

The Applicant stated that they would be amendable to additional considerations the Commission 
or Council might make.  
 
Richard Gartman to allow a 120-foot water standpipe to exceed the 35-foot maximum height 
allowance at 113 Tahitian Drive, Lot A of Tahitian Village, Unit 1, an area zoned C-2, Commercial-
2, within the city limits of Bastrop, and forward to the next City Council Meeting. Cynthia Meyer 
seconded the motion and the motion carried unanimously. 

 
4. WORKSHOP 

4A. Discussion and update on the Draft Subdivision Ordinance 

Jennifer Bills stated the Commission had an upcoming Joint Meeting with City Council on May 
10, 2018 to discuss the Ordinance.  

4B.  Discussion on the Digital Billboards.  
 

Jennifer Bills gave a PowerPoint presentation on Digital Billboards.  

The Commission made the comments on digital billboards:  

• Could billboards be turned off or left on one image at night? 

• Would like for a substantial number of static billboards be taken down for every digital 
billboard allowed. 

• Concerned about the light output and brightness. 

• Could they be used for emergency messages? 

• Does the allowance of digital billboards match the long-term vision for Bastrop? 

5. ADJOURNMENT 

Cynthia Meyer made a motion to adjourn at 7:40 pm. Patrick Connell seconded the motion, and 
the motion carried unanimously.  

_______________________ 
Debbie Moore, Chair 
 
_______________________ 
Patrick Connell, Vice Chair 



Page 1 of 4 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE:  May 31, 2018       ITEM:  3B   
 
TITLE:  
Consider action to recommend approval of The Colony MUD 1A, Section 3, Phase A and B 
Preliminary Plat being 100.289 acres out of the Jose Manuel Bangs Survey, Abstract 5, located 
east of FM 969 within the Statutory Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction of Bastrop, Texas and forward to 
City Council for consideration at their next meeting. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:   
Jennifer C. Bills, AICP, LEED AP, Assistant Planning Director 
 
ITEM DETAILS: 
Site Address: East of FM 969 and west of the Colorado River (Attachment 1) 
Total Acreage: 100.289 acres 
Legal Description: 100.289 acres of the Jose Manuel Bangs Survey, Abstract 5 
  
Property Owner: Rick Neff/Hunt Communities Bastrop, L.L.C. 
Agent Contact: Christine Methvin, Carlson, Brigance, and Doering, Inc. 
  
Existing Use: Vacant/Undeveloped 
Existing Zoning: 
Adopted Plan: 

None.  Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction, The Colony MUD 
Second Amendment to the Colony MUD Consent Agreement 

Future Land Use: Neighborhood Residential 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
The applicant has submitted a new Preliminary Plat for  The Colony MUD 1A, Section 3, Phases 
A and B.  The plat is creating 231 single-family detached lots, and 11 associated 
landscape/drainage/open space lots (Exhibit A). The proposed single-family lots follow the lot 
standards adopted in the Consent Agreement. 
 

Lot Standard Minimum 
Dimensions (feet) 

Lot Size 
(square feet) 

Colony - S 50 ft. by 110 ft. 6,000 
   
he subdivision will have 17.588 acres of right-of-way that will be maintained by the MUD with nine 
new residential (50’ ROW) streets and one collector (100’ ROW) that serve the subdivision. 
 
Traffic Impact and Streets 
The Preliminary Plat proposes to extend Sam Houston Drive, an arterial street, westward from its 
intersection with FM 969, which will provide the main access into the development. Local streets 
connecting to Sam Houston Drive will serve the proposed residential lots and provide access into  
the adjacent undeveloped property to the south and to the adjacent developed property to the 
north. Sidewalks will also be built within the development, which will ultimately connect to the 
existing neighborhood trail system. 
 
A traffic impact analysis (TIA) for the overall development of The Colony Subdivision has been 



Page 2 of 4 
 

previously approved by the City, and the Preliminary Plat is consistent with the recommendations 
of that analysis. Improvements along FM 969 are proposed to be built with the previous section 
and include items such as turning and deceleration lanes. Provisions for a future traffic signal will 
also be provided. 
 
Utilities 
Water service (domestic and fire) will be provided by The Colony MUD via water line extensions 
from existing infrastructure located near FM 969. These lines will be designed according to the 
City’s construction standards, as well as the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality’s 
(TCEQ) requirements. 
 
Wastewater collection and treatment will also be provided by The Colony MUD and will require 
the installation of a wastewater lift station. 
 
Drainage 
Stormwater runoff generated within the property will be routed through an underground storm 
sewer network, which will then flow eastward to the Colorado River. 
 
The proposed drainage system will be designed with a sufficient capacity to route flows from a 
100-year design storm to the Colorado River. Due to the property’s proximity to the river, 
stormwater detention is not required. 
 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:  
Notifications were mailed to eight adjacent property owners on May 11, 2018 (Attachment 2).  At 
the time of this report, no comments have been received. 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Preliminary Plats are reviewed by the Planning & Zoning Commission and a recommendation is 
provided. The plat and P&Z report are then forwarded to City Council for final approval.  
 
Compliance with 2036 Comprehensive Plan: 

Future Land Use Plan - Neighborhood Residential:  The Neighborhood Residential 
character area is for single-family residential subdivision development, associated 
amenities such as parks, trails, open spaces and public uses such as schools, fire stations, 
and more.  
 
This plat complies with the Future Land Use Plan, which shows Neighborhood Residential 
in this area. The plat includes 231 single-family lots that will provide 231 single-family 
detached units. There are also seven common lots that provide open space, drainage and 
landscaped areas and four lots of park space for this plat.  
 
Objective 2.1.2: Exercise greater influence on development patterns and character in the 
Bastrop ETJ. 
 
The City of Bastrop has a Consent Agreement with the Colony Municipal Utility District 
that allows the city to agree to specific land uses and development standards, even though 
the development is not within the city limits. This allows the city to ensure the quality of 
development and future sustainability. 
 
Goal 4.1.1 Provide a greater diversity of housing options in Bastrop while protecting the 
character of the City’s existing neighborhoods. 
 
Through the Consent Agreement, the Colony MUD development includes four different 
single-family lot standards and two multi-family standards. This plat falls into the Colony 



Page 3 of 4 
 

– S, 6,000 square foot category, which is a bit smaller, but roughly equivalent to the 
Bastrop 
Zoning Ordinance Single-Family 7. These lots will allow for smaller lot sizes, providing a 
single-family detached home without as much yard area to maintain. 
 

Local Government Code  
Sec. 212.002.  Rules.   
After a public hearing on the matter, the governing body of a municipality may adopt rules 
governing plats and subdivisions of land within the municipality's jurisdiction to promote 
the health, safety, morals, or general welfare of the municipality and the safe, orderly, and 
healthful development of the municipality. 

 
 Bastrop adopted subdivision regulations in 1981.  The Code of Ordinances, Chapter 10 

– Subdivisions outlines the requirements for plats within the Bastrop city limits and Extra 
Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ). 

 
Section 212.004 Plat Required 
(a) The owner of a tract of land located within the limits or in the extraterritorial jurisdiction 

of a municipality who divides the tract in two or more parts to lay out a subdivision of 
the tract, including an addition to a municipality, to lay out suburban, building, or other 
lots, or to lay out streets, alleys, squares, parks, or other parts of the tract intended to 
be dedicated to public use or for the use of purchasers or owners of lots fronting on or 
adjacent to the streets, alleys, squares, parks, or other parts must have a plat of the 
subdivision prepared. 

 
The applicant has proposed subdividing an undeveloped 100.289-acre tract into 231 
single-family lots.  Public improvements within the subdivision (streets, drainage, and 
other utilities) will be dedicated to the Colony Municipal Utility District upon their 
completion.  

 
Sec. 212.010.  Standards for Approval 
(a)  The municipal authority responsible for approving plats shall approve a plat if: 
 (1) it conforms to the general plan of the municipality and its current and future streets, 

alleys, parks, playgrounds, and public utility facilities;  
 

The preliminary plat conforms to the Future Land Use Plan, which is designated 
Neighborhood Residential for this area. 

 
 (2)   it conforms to the general plan for the extension of the municipality and its roads, 

streets, and public highways within the municipality and in its extraterritorial 
jurisdiction, taking into account access to and extension of sewer and water mains 
and the instrumentalities of public utilities; 

A traffic impact analysis (TIA) for the overall development of The Colony 
Subdivision has been previously approved by the City, and the plat is consistent 
with the recommendations of that analysis. Improvements along FM 969 are 
proposed to be built with the previous section and include items such as turning 
and deceleration lanes. Provisions for a future traffic signal will also be provided.  

 (3)   a bond required under Section 212.0106, if applicable, is filed with the municipality; 
and 

 
Before the Final Plat can be approved, the City Engineer must approve the Public 
Improvement Construction Plan.  Required improvements and bonds will be 
furnished before the recordation of the Final Plat. 



Page 4 of 4 
 

 
 (4)   it conforms to any rules adopted under Section 212.002. 
 

The preliminary plat complies with the requirements of the adopted Subdivision 
Ordinance and Consent Agreement. 

 
Code of Ordinances Chapter 10 – Subdivisions 
· Section 4.10 – Standard Procedure – Preliminary Plat 

 
4.10.1. The subdivider shall submit a preliminary plat of the entire area being subdivided. 
Prior to the plat being placed before the Commission for consideration, the plat must be 
accepted as administratively complete by the Director of Planning and Development. A plat 
that contains the detailed information set forth in paragraphs 4.10.1 and 4.10.2 is considered 
administratively complete. 

 
 Planning and Engineering staff have reviewed The Colony MUD 1A, Section 3, 

Phase A and B Preliminary Plat for compliance with subdivision and utility standards 
and have deemed the plat administratively complete. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to recommend approval of The Colony MUD 1A, Section 3, Phase A and B 
Preliminary Plat being 100.289 acres out of the Jose Manuel Bangs Survey, Abstract 5, located 
east of FM 969 within the Statutory Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction of Bastrop, Texas and forward to 
City Council for consideration at their next meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Exhibit A:  Preliminiary Plat 
Attachment 1:  Location Map 
Attachment 2:  Surrounding Property Notification 
 









1A Sec 3 Ph A&B

1A Sec 1A

FM
 9

69

CAPPS

Location Map
Preliminary Plat

The Colony MUD
1A Section 3 Phases A & B ³Date: 5/11/2018

The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.     

BLAKEY DUFF

FM
 96

9

0 250 500125 Feet



  

P L A N N I N G  &  D E V E L O P M E N T  

1311 Chestnut  St reet  ●  PO Box 427 ●  Bast rop,  Texas 78602 ●  512.332.8840 ●  www.c i tyofbas trop.org  

 

 
 
 
Notice of Pending Subdivision Approval 
City of Bastrop 
Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council 
 

Dear Property Owner: 

The Planning & Zoning Commission will hold a meeting Thursday, May 31, 
2018 at 6:00 p.m. and the City Council will hold a meeting on Tuesday, June 12, 
2018 at 6:30 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 1311 Chestnut 
Street, Bastrop, Texas to consider approval of The Colony MUD 1A, Section 3, 
Phase A and B Preliminary Plat being 100.289 acres out of the Jose Manuel Bangs 
Survey, A-5, located east of FM 969 within the Statutory Extra-Territorial 
Jurisdiction of Bastrop, Texas. 

Owner/Applicant: Hunt Communities Bastrop, LLC/Rick Neff 
 
Address: East of FM 969  
 
Legal Description: 100.289 acres out of the Jose Manuel Bangs Survey, 

A-5 

Number of Lots:   231 residential, 11 open space and easement lots 

 
The site location map and preliminary plat are attached for reference. 

 
As a property owner within 200 feet of the above referenced property, you are 
being notified of the upcoming meetings per the Bastrop Code of Ordinances 
Subdivision Regulations.   
 
Property owners wishing to subdivide land must follow the rules within the City 
Subdivision Regulations, which can be read online at: 
 
https://library.municode.com/tx/bastrop/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CH1
0SU 
 
For more information on this project, you can contact the Planning & Development 
offices at (512) 332-8840, plan@cityofbastrop.org, or visit the office at 1311 
Chestnut Street, Bastrop, Texas. 
 

https://library.municode.com/tx/bastrop/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CH10SU
https://library.municode.com/tx/bastrop/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CH10SU
mailto:plan@cityofbastrop.org


Page 1 of 5  

PLANNING & ZONING 
STAFF REPORT 

 

MEETING DATE:  May 31, 2018  ITEM: 3C 
 

TITLE: 
Public Hearing and consider action to recommend approval of a Conditional Use Permit to 
allow a brewery, distillery and winery use on 0.046 acres of Building Block 3 West of Water 
Street (809 Main Street), an area zoned HMS, Historic Main Street, and 0.184 acres of 
Building Block 3 West of Water Street (705 Pine Street), an area zoned DMU, Downtown 
Mixed Use, within the city limits of Bastrop and forward to City Council for consideration at 
their next meeting. 

 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Jennifer C. Bills, AICP, LEED AP, Assistant Planning Director 

 
ITEM DETAILS: 
Site Address: 715 Pine Street and 809 Main Street (Attachment 1)  
Total Acreage: 0.644 acres 
Legal Description: 0.046 acres of Building Block 3 West of Water Street (809 Main Street) 

and 0.184 acres of Building Block 3 West of Water Street (705 Pine 
Street) 

 
Property Owner: Thomas and Judi Hoover 
Applicant Contact: Stephen and Cheri Todee 

 
Existing Use: Vacant Retail Commercial Building 
Existing Zoning: DMU, Downtown Mixed Use and HMS, Historic Main Street 
Future Land Use: Downtown Bastrop 

 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
The Copper Shot Distillery is currently in business at 604 Chestnut Street.  The applicant is 
looking to move to a bigger site to expand production and seating availability.  (Attachment 2). 

 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
The purpose of conditional uses is to allow certain uses in districts that under some 
circumstances would not be compatible with other permitted uses, but may be compatible if 
certain conditions and development restrictions are met. A Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is 
adopted by Ordinance, similar to a standard zoning request, with public hearings at Planning & 
Zoning Commission and City Council meetings, as well as two ordinance readings at separate 
City Council meetings. 

 
Per Section 33.2 Conditional Use Permit Regulations, the Planning and Zoning Commission 
and City Council may consider the following for approval of a requested CUP: 

1. The use is harmonious and compatible with surrounding existing uses or proposed 
uses; 

 
Small scale production businesses and assembly space is compatible with the 
surrounding uses of historic downtown offices, retail, and restaurants.  

 
2. The activities requested by the applicant are normally associated with the permitted 

uses in the base district; 



Page 2 of 5  

 
Small scale production businesses and assembly space is compatible with the 
Downtown Mixed Use and Historic Main Street zoning districts. 

 
3. The nature of the use is reasonable; 

 
Small retail breweries, distilleries and wineries are a reasonable size and scale 
use for the downtown. 

 
4. Any negative impact on the surrounding area has been mitigated;  
 

The production operations of the use will not produce any noxious emissions or 
noise.  The wastewater discharge will comply with the City of Bastrop utility 
requirements in Chapter 13, Article 13.03, Sections 1 – 10, which regulates the 
discharge of water in public sewers. 

 
6.  That any additional conditions specified ensure that the intent of the district purposes   

are being upheld. 
 

No additional criteria are required. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Property owner notifications were mailed to 18 adjacent property owners on May 11, 2018. At 
the time of this report, three responses in favor were received. (Attachment 4). 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Public Hearing and consider action to recommend approval of a Conditional Use Permit to 
allow a brewery, distillery and winery use on 0.046 acres of Building Block 3 West of Water 
Street (809 Main Street), an area zoned HMS, Historic Main Street, and (0.184 acres of 
Building Block 3 West of Water Street (705 Pine Street), an area zoned DMU, Downtown 
Mixed Use, within the city limits of Bastrop with the following conditions and forward to City 
Council for consideration at their next meeting. 
 

1. Construction shall be in conformance with the City of Bastrop regulations. 

2. All necessary permits for the proposed development shall be acquired prior to occupying 
the building. 

3. A Building Permit shall be applied for and secured within one year from the date the 
Conditional Use Permit is granted (second reading of the ordinance). 

4. The wastewater discharge will comply with the City of Bastrop utility requirements in 
Chapter 13, Article 13.03, Sections 1 – 10, which regulates the discharge of water in 
public sewers. 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment 1: Property Location Map 
Attachment 2: Letter from Applicant 
Attachment 3: Conceptual Site Plan 
Attachment 4: Property Owner’s Notification 
Attachment 5: Zoning Map 



M
AIN

PINE

ALLEY B

Location Map
Conditional Use Permit (CUP)

Portion of Building Block 3 West of Water St
705 Pine St and 809 Main St ³Date: 5/11/2018

The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.     

MAIN

PINE

WATER

PECAN

WALNUT

ALLEY B

0 25 5012.5 Feet













M
AIN

W
ATER

PINE

CHESTNUT

WALNUT

ALLEY B

AL
LE

Y 
A

Attachment 4
Zoning Map

Conditional Use Permit
Copper Shot Distillery ³Date: 5/25/2018

The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.     1 inch = 100 feet

PINE

MAIN

PECAN

WATER

WALNUT

ALLEY B









Page 1 of 5 
 

PLANNING & ZONING 
STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE:  May 31, 2018       Item:   3D  
 
TITLE:  
Public Hearing and consider action to recommend approval of a rezone for the northeast corner 
of SH 95 and Chestnut Street to C-1, Commercial 1, consisting of Lots 1 & 2 of the Lee-Jackson 
& Fowler Subdivision (1.717 acres) currently Form-based Code Character Zone CMU, 
Commercial Mixed Use, and 0.398 acres of Bastrop Town Tract Abstract 11 and 2.046 acres of 
Building Block 12 East of Water Street currently C-2, Commercial 2, within the city limits of 
Bastrop, and forward to City Council for consideration at their next meeting. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Jennifer C. Bills, AICP, LEED AP, Assistant Planning Director 
 
ITEM DETAILS: 
Site Address: Northeast corner of Chestnut and SH 95 (Attachment 6) 
Total Acreage: 4.22 acres 
Legal Description: Lots 1 & 2 of the Lee-Jackson & Fowler Subdivision (1.717 acres) 

0.398 acres of Bastrop Town Tract, Abstract 11 
2.046 acres of Building Block 12 East of Water Street 

  
Property Owners: Bob Patterson; Marvin E & Anne P Beck 
Agent Contact: David Meyer, Jr./QuikTrip 
  
Existing Use: Vacant/Undeveloped 
Existing Zoning: FBC - CMU, Form-based Code - Commercial Mixed Use (1.717 acres) 

C-2, Commercial 2 (2.44 acres) 
Requested Zoning: C-1, Commercial 1 
Future Land Use: Neighborhood Commercial 

 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
The applicant has applied to rezone the five tracts on the northeast corner of SH 95 and Chestnut 
Street to C-1, Commercial 1, with the intent to build a convenience store with fuel sales.  Currently, 
two tracts are zoned CMU, Commercial Mixed Use in the Form-based Code, which was adopted 
in 2015.  Prior to the FBC, the entire corner was zoned C-2, Commercial 2.   
 
Fuel sales are allowed within the CMU district, but the applicant would like to use the development 
standards that allow for site layout requirements better suited for fuel sales.  The C-1 district will 
accommodate this use, while providing a narrower list of by-right uses than C-2 zoning and is 
consistent with the Neighborhood Commercial Future Land Use Designation. 
 
The five tracts will have go through the subdivision process to create one lot, which also 
necessitates bringing the area into one zoning district.  Through the platting process, any street 
and utility improvements will be reviewed.  Through the site development process, pedestrian 
access with sidewalks along SH 95 and Chestnut Street, front yard landscaping and parking lot 
screening will required.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:  



Page 2 of 5 
 

Property owner notifications were sent to 16 adjacent property owners on May 11, 2018. At the 
time of this report, one response was received and is opposed to the rezoning. (Attachment 3) 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Staff recommends the amendment of the zoning district to C-1, Commercial 1.  Moving to C-1 is 
a parallel shift/downzone from the CMU and C-2 districts that are already in place. Allowing C-1 
will bring most of the corner under the same zoning district and allow the developer to use the 
standards of the C-1 district to arrange the site in a fashion that is conducive to a retail sales and 
service use.  
 
The authority to establish zoning districts and a process for amending boundaries is outlined in 
the Texas Local Government Code Section 211. City zoning districts govern the use and 
development of land, buildings, and structures as a measure necessary to the orderly 
development of the community. 
 
Texas Local Government Code 

Sec. 211.006. PROCEDURES GOVERNING ADOPTION OF ZONING REGULATIONS AND 
DISTRICT BOUNDARIES. (a) The governing body of a municipality wishing to exercise the 
authority relating to zoning regulations and zoning district boundaries shall establish procedures 
for adopting and enforcing the regulations and boundaries. A regulation or boundary is not 
effective until after a public hearing on the matter at which parties in interest and citizens have an 
opportunity to be heard. Before the 15th day before the date of the hearing, notice of the time and 
place of the hearing must be published in an official newspaper or a newspaper of general 
circulation in the municipality. 

Notice was published in the Bastrop Advertiser on May 5, 2017 and notice was sent to property 
owners within 200 feet of the property boundary. 

(b)  In addition to the notice required by Subsection (a), a general-law municipality that does not 
have a zoning commission shall give notice of a proposed change in a zoning classification to 
each property owner who would be entitled to notice under Section 211.007(c) if the municipality 
had a zoning commission.  That notice must be given in the same manner as required for notice 
to property owners under Section 211.007(c).  The governing body may not adopt the proposed 
change until after the 30th day after the date the notice required by this subsection is given. 

N/A. Bastrop is not a general-law municipality. 

(c)  If the governing body of a home-rule municipality conducts a hearing under Subsection (a), 
the governing body may, by a two-thirds vote, prescribe the type of notice to be given of the time 
and place of the public hearing.  Notice requirements prescribed under this subsection are in 
addition to the publication of notice required by Subsection (a). 

The notice process was adopted in the Bastrop Code of Ordinances. 

(d)  If a proposed change to a regulation or boundary is protested in accordance with this 
subsection, the proposed change must receive, in order to take effect, the affirmative vote of at 
least three-fourths of all members of the governing body.  The protest must be written and signed 
by the owners of at least 20 percent of either: 

(1)  the area of the lots or land covered by the proposed change; or 



Page 3 of 5 
 

(2)  the area of the lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the proposed 
change and extending 200 feet from that area. 

(e)  In computing the percentage of land area under Subsection (d), the area of streets and alleys 
shall be included. 

At the time of this report, no protest has been received. 

(f)  The governing body by ordinance may provide that the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths 
of all its members is required to overrule a recommendation of the municipality's zoning 
commission that a proposed change to a regulation or boundary be denied. 

If the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial of the zoning request, the City Council 
must have a minimum vote of 4 out of 5 members to approve the zoning request. 

City of Bastrop Code of Ordinances 
Section 10 – Changes and Amendments to All Zoning Ordinances and Districts contains the 
process for amending the zoning map.  Changes shall only be made: 

A. To correct any error in the regulations or map.  

The existing zoning district was adopted through the appropriate process.  The current 
owner wishes to develop these lots as a commercial use, which requires a zoning 
amendment to rezone the entire development area to the same zoning district. 

B. To recognize changed or changing conditions or circumstances in a particular locality. 

The applicant plans to plat five existing tracts into one, which would result in a split zoned 
tract.  This rezoning request will move the area into one district. 

C. To recognize changes in technology, the style of living, or manner of conducting business. 

This does not apply.  The request follows the existing development pattern in the area. 

D. To change the property to uses in accordance with the approved Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The requested zoning change to C-1 is consistent with the Future Land Use designation 
of Neighborhood Commercial shown in the Comprehensive Plan (Attachment 5). 

In making a determination regarding a requested zoning change, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and City Council shall consider the following factors: 

1. Whether the uses permitted by the proposed change will be appropriate in the immediate 
area concerned and their relationship to the general area and the City as a whole. 

Primary permitted uses allowed by right within the C-1 district include many uses in the 
Recreational and Entertainment Uses, Educational, Institutional and Special Uses, Office 
and Professional Uses, and Retail and Service Uses categories, and some in the 
Automobile and Related Uses category, including convenience store with fuel. These uses 
are appropriate considering the surrounding development is primarily commercial and the 
property is adjacent to SH 95 and Chestnut Streets, which are both major collector streets. 



Page 4 of 5 
 

2. Whether the proposed change is in accord with any existing or proposed plans for 
providing public schools, streets, water supply, sanitary sewers, and other utilities to the 
area, and shall note the findings. 

The proposed change is in accord and shall not adversely affect the existing public 
schools, streets, or utilities in the area. The area will be required to go through the 
subdivision process and any additional street or utility improvements needed to serve the 
development (if any) will be determined and required through that process. 

3. The amount of vacant land currently classified for similar development in the vicinity and 
elsewhere in the City, and any special circumstances, which may make a substantial part 
of such vacant land unavailable for development. 

There is vacant land classified as commercial in the vicinity and elsewhere in the city. 
Some of the vacant residential land in the vicinity is hindered by lack of utility infrastructure 
(water, wastewater, and/or electric), which requires a longer platting process and 
increases the cost of development. Other vacant residential land in the vicinity is not for 
sale. East of SH 95, commercial development may be hindered by terrain challenges, lack 
of developed street or utility infrastructure, or requires additional regulation by the Lost 
Pines Habitat Conservation Plan (LPHCP). Retail sale and services that are allowed in 
commercial districts have a specific target area, and commercially zoned property south 
of 71 or on the west side of the city would not be affected by this property. 

4. The recent rate at which land is being developed in the same zoning classification as the 
request, particularly in the vicinity of the proposed change. 

Over the last 10 years commercial tracts along SH 95 and Chestnut Street have be 
developed at a steady rate, with a gas station and new shopping center to the south at SH 
95 and SH 71, additions to the restaurant and gas station across the street, and retail 
services along Chestnut.  

5. How other areas designated for similar development will be, or are unlikely to be, affected 
if the proposed amendment is approved. 

The area is already zoned for commercial uses. This amendment would be a parallel 
shift/downzone from the current districts, so the change will not affect other areas 
designated for similar development.  

6. Any other factors which will substantially affect the public health, safety, morals, or general 
welfare. 
 
None. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Public Hearing and consider action to recommend approval of a rezone for the northeast corner 
of SH 95 and Chestnut Street to C-1, Commercial 1, consisting of Lots 1 & 2 of the Lee-Jackson 
& Fowler Subdivision (1.717 acres) currently Form-based Code Character Zone CMU, 
Commercial Mixed Use, and 0.398 acres of Bastrop Town Tract Abstract 11 and 2.046 acres of 
Building Block 12 East of Water Street currently C-2, Commercial 2, within the city limits of 
Bastrop, and forward to City Council for consideration at their next meeting. 
 
  



Page 5 of 5 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment 1:  Location Map 
Attachment 2:  Letter from Applicant 
Attachment 3:  Surrounding Property Owners Notification 
Attachment 4:  Zoning Map 
Attachment 5:  Future Land Use Map 
Attachment 6:  Aerial Location Map 



SH
 95

FARM

CHESTNUT

SPRING
C

P 
JO

H
N

SO
N

SH
 95

 T
O C

HEST
NUT 

ST

C
P JO

H
N

SO
N

R81432

R39297
R36633

R36601

R22435R32729 R71075

R36649

R39280

R36793

R36801

R32810

R36617

R45672

R32360

R118911

R47487

R47798

R36785

R84564

R83050

R47797R36665

R32711

R32369

R32756

R36289

R81904

R61242

R112396

R64352

R32405

R112397

R32774

R36481

R32801

R32747

R36641

R47470

R32396

R47796

R75923

R36473

R32720

R36625

R118245

R36657

R47773

R36777

R47470

R123510

R27766

R32378

R36505

Attachment 6
Aerial Location Map

Zoning Map Amendment
Bastrop Town Tract A11 0.398 Acres

Building Block 112 E W ST 2.046 Acres ³Date: 11/17/2017

The acc uracy  and precision of th is  c artographic
data is limi ted and should be us ed for in for m ation
/p lanning pur pos es only.  Th is data does not 
rep lace surv ey s conducted by reg is ter ed Texas
land surv eyors  nor  does  it consti tute  an "official "
veri fic ation of z oning, land us e c las si fic ation, or
 o ther c lass ification s et for th  in  loca l , sta te, or
federa l  r egulator y pr ocess es. T he City  o f Bas trop,
nor  any of i ts em ploy ees, do not m ake any  warranty
of mer chantabi li ty and fitness  for par tic ular pur pos e,
 or  as sum es any legal  liab li ty or res pons ib i li ty for the 
ac curac y, com pletenes s or usefu l lness  of any  s uch
inform ation, nor does  i t r epr esent that i ts use would
not infr inge upon private ly  owned rights.     1 inch = 200 feet

HILL

M
AIN

WATER

PI NE

PECAN

CEDAR

JASPER

FAR M

1AHAYSEL

EMIL E

AUST IN

PI
TT

COLL EGE

BEE CH

M
 L K JR

AR
EN

A

ELM

FAYETTE

LOST PI NES

LINDA

SPR ING

JEFFERSON

CYPR ESS

WAL NUT

GUTIER R EZ

CATALPA

CP
 JO

HN
SO

N

GORDON

ROSANKY

NEWTO N

TO
LI

VE
R

CH
AM

BE
RS

CEDAR

SPR ING

ELM

JEFFERSON

FAYE TTEWAL NUT

EMIL E

FAR M

FAYETTE

¬«71

¬«95



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
April 30, 2018 
 
City of Bastrop Planning and Zoning Commission   
 
1311 Chestnut St, 
 
Bastrop, Texas 78602 
 
Attn: Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
 
 
RE: Zoning Explanation Letter  
 
 

 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
Please accept this letter as an appropriate explanation for the proposed zoning change of the tract of 
land, approximately 4.229 acres, at the NEC of Hwy 95 & Chestnut St, to be zoned from 
Commercial-2/Commercial Mixed Use to Commercial-1. The change in zoning was a 
recommendation from Planning Staff and is also to help provide uniformity in zoning for the entire 
4.229 acre tract of land.     
 
Please feel free to reach out to me directly with any questions you may have. 
 
 
Respectfully,  
   
 
 
 
David Meyer, Jr. 
Real Estate Project Manager- QuikTrip Corp. 

A Fortune 100 "Best Companies to Work For" 
1 Chisholm Trail Road, 
Suite 450 
Round Rock, TX 78681 
(704) 604-3475 - Direct Line 
dmeyerjr@quiktrip.com - Email 

 

QuikTrip
®

 Corporation 
 

                           AUSTIN  DIVISION      
1 Chisholm Trail Road 

Suite 450 
Round Rock, TX 78681 

(704) 604-3475 

          David Meyer, Jr. 
    Real Estate Project Manager 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:dmeyerjr@quiktrip.com




SH
 95

FARM

CHESTNUT

SPRING
C

P 
JO

H
N

SO
N

SH
 95

 T
O C

HEST
NUT 

ST

C
P JO

H
N

SO
N

901  

1105  

1510  

1107  

1103  

1302  

1206  

1204  

1305  

1201  
1706  

1100  

1904  

1712  

1708  

1716  1712  

1902  1806  
1804  

1712  

900 104
900 103
900 102 1900 1316

1900 13151900 1314
1900 1308

1900 12081900 1207
1900 1205

1900 12031900 1112

R81432

R39297
R36633

R36601

R22435R32729 R71075

R36649

R39280

R36793

R36801

R32810

R36617

R45672

R32360

R118911

R47487

R47798

R36785

R84564

R83050

R47797R36665

R32711

R32369

R32756

R36289

R81904

R61242

R64352

R32405

R112397

R32774

R32801

R32747

R36641

R47470

R32396

R47796

R75923

R36473

R32720

R112396

R36625

R36481

R118245

R36657

R47773

R36777

R47470

R123510

R27766

R32378

R36505

Attachment 4
Zoning Map

Zoning Map Amendment
Bastrop Town Tract A11 0.398 Acres

Building Block 112 E W ST 2.046 Acres ³Date: 11/20/2017

The acc uracy  and precision of th is  c artographic
data is limi ted and should be us ed for in for m ation
/p lanning pur pos es only.  Th is data does not 
rep lace surv ey s conducted by reg is ter ed Texas
land surv eyors  nor  does  it consti tute  an "official "
veri fic ation of z oning, land us e c las si fic ation, or
 o ther c lass ification s et for th  in  loca l , sta te, or
federa l  r egulator y pr ocess es. T he City  o f Bas trop,
nor  any of i ts em ploy ees, do not m ake any  warranty
of mer chantabi li ty and fitness  for par tic ular pur pos e,
 or  as sum es any legal  liab li ty or res pons ib i li ty for the 
ac curac y, com pletenes s or usefu l lness  of any  s uch
inform ation, nor does  i t r epr esent that i ts use would
not infr inge upon private ly  owned rights.     1 inch = 200 feet

HILL

M
AIN

WATER

PI NE

PECAN

CEDAR

JASPER

FAR M

1AHAYSEL

EMIL E

AUST IN

PI
TT

COLL EGE

BEE CH

M
 L K JR

AR
EN

A

ELM

FAYETTE

LOST PI NES

LINDA

SPR ING

JEFFERSON

CYPR ESS

WAL NUT

GUTIER R EZ

CATALPA

CP
 JO

HN
SO

N

GORDON

ROSANKY

NEWTO N

TO
LI

VE
R

CH
AM

BE
RS

CEDAR

SPR ING

ELM

JEFFERSON

FAYE TTEWAL NUT

EMIL E

FAR M

FAYETTE

¬«71

¬«95



SH
 95

FARM

CHESTNUT

SPRING
C

P 
JO

H
N

SO
N

SH
 95

 T
O C

HEST
NUT 

ST

C
P JO

H
N

SO
N

R81432

R39297
R36633

R36601

R22435R32729 R71075

R36649

R39280

R36793

R36801

R32810

R36617

R45672

R32360

R118911

R47487

R47798

R36785

R84564

R83050

R47797R36665

R32711

R32369

R32756

R36289

R81904

R61242

R112396

R64352

R32405

R112397

R32774

R36481

R32801

R32747

R36641

R47470

R32396

R47796

R75923

R36473

R32720

R36625

R118245

R36657

R47773

R36777

R47470

R123510

R27766

R32378

R36505

Attachment 5
Future Land Use Map

Zoning Map Amendment
Bastrop Town Tract A11 0.398 Acres

Building Block 112 E W ST 2.046 Acres ³Date: 11/17/2017

The acc uracy  and precision of th is  c artographic
data is limi ted and should be us ed for in for m ation
/p lanning pur pos es only.  Th is data does not 
rep lace surv ey s conducted by reg is ter ed Texas
land surv eyors  nor  does  it consti tute  an "official "
veri fic ation of z oning, land us e c las si fic ation, or
 o ther c lass ification s et for th  in  loca l , sta te, or
federa l  r egulator y pr ocess es. T he City  o f Bas trop,
nor  any of i ts em ploy ees, do not m ake any  warranty
of mer chantabi li ty and fitness  for par tic ular pur pos e,
 or  as sum es any legal  liab li ty or res pons ib i li ty for the 
ac curac y, com pletenes s or usefu l lness  of any  s uch
inform ation, nor does  i t r epr esent that i ts use would
not infr inge upon private ly  owned rights.     1 inch = 200 feet

HILL

M
AIN

WATER

PI NE

PECAN

CEDAR

JASPER

FAR M

1AHAYSEL

EMIL E

AUST IN

PI
TT

COLL EGE

BEE CH

M
 L K JR

AR
EN

A

ELM

FAYETTE

LOST PI NES

LINDA

SPR ING

JEFFERSON

CYPR ESS

WAL NUT

GUTIER R EZ

CATALPA

CP
 JO

HN
SO

N

GORDON

ROSANKY

NEWTO N

TO
LI

VE
R

CH
AM

BE
RS

CEDAR

SPR ING

ELM

JEFFERSON

FAYE TTEWAL NUT

EMIL E

FAR M

FAYETTE

¬«71

¬«95

Legend
Future Land Use

Parks and Open Space

Rural Residential

Neighborhood Residential

Transitional Residential

Neighborhood Commercial

General Commercial

Professional Services

Downtown Bastrop*

Public and Institutional

Industrial



SH
 95

FARM

CHESTNUT

SPRING
C

P 
JO

H
N

SO
N

SH
 95

 T
O C

HEST
NUT 

ST

C
P JO

H
N

SO
N

R81432

R39297
R36633

R36601

R22435R32729 R71075

R36649

R39280

R36793

R36801

R32810

R36617

R45672

R32360

R118911

R47487

R47798

R36785

R84564

R83050

R47797R36665

R32711

R32369

R32756

R36289

R81904

R61242

R112396

R64352

R32405

R112397

R32774

R36481

R32801

R32747

R36641

R47470

R32396

R47796

R75923

R36473

R32720

R36625

R118245

R36657

R47773

R36777

R47470

R123510

R27766

R32378

R36505

Attachment 6
Aerial Location Map

Zoning Map Amendment
Bastrop Town Tract A11 0.398 Acres

Building Block 112 E W ST 2.046 Acres ³Date: 11/17/2017

The acc uracy  and precision of th is  c artographic
data is limi ted and should be us ed for in for m ation
/p lanning pur pos es only.  Th is data does not 
rep lace surv ey s conducted by reg is ter ed Texas
land surv eyors  nor  does  it consti tute  an "official "
veri fic ation of z oning, land us e c las si fic ation, or
 o ther c lass ification s et for th  in  loca l , sta te, or
federa l  r egulator y pr ocess es. T he City  o f Bas trop,
nor  any of i ts em ploy ees, do not m ake any  warranty
of mer chantabi li ty and fitness  for par tic ular pur pos e,
 or  as sum es any legal  liab li ty or res pons ib i li ty for the 
ac curac y, com pletenes s or usefu l lness  of any  s uch
inform ation, nor does  i t r epr esent that i ts use would
not infr inge upon private ly  owned rights.     1 inch = 200 feet

HILL

M
AIN

WATER

PI NE

PECAN

CEDAR

JASPER

FAR M

1AHAYSEL

EMIL E

AUST IN

PI
TT

COLL EGE

BEE CH

M
 L K JR

AR
EN

A

ELM

FAYETTE

LOST PI NES

LINDA

SPR ING

JEFFERSON

CYPR ESS

WAL NUT

GUTIER R EZ

CATALPA

CP
 JO

HN
SO

N

GORDON

ROSANKY

NEWTO N

TO
LI

VE
R

CH
AM

BE
RS

CEDAR

SPR ING

ELM

JEFFERSON

FAYE TTEWAL NUT

EMIL E

FAR M

FAYETTE

¬«71

¬«95



Page 1 of 5  

PLANNING & ZONING 
STAFF REPORT 

 

MEETING DATE:  May 31, 2018  ITEM: 3E 
 

TITLE: 
Public Hearing and consider action to recommend approval of a subdivision variance to waive 
the requirement of Section 5.20 – Streets, to improve or post fiscal surety for the construction 
of 50 percent of C.P. Johnson Lane, between Farm Street and Fairview Cemetery and forward 
to City Council for consideration at their next meeting. 

 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Jennifer C. Bills, AICP, LEED AP, Assistant Planning Director 

 
ITEM DETAILS: 
Site Address: 1706, 1708, 1712 Farm Street (Attachment 1)  
Total Acreage: 2.946 acres 
Legal Description: 2.946 acres of Farm Lot 67 East of Main Street 

 
Property Owner\ 
Applicant Contact: Ronald and Carole Reynolds 

 
Existing Use: Single-Family Residential 
Existing Zoning: CMU, Commercial Mixed Use and MF-1, Multifamily 1 
Future Land Use: Rural Residential 

 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
The property owner has filed a plat to officially subdivide three lots into three residential lots.  
There are currently three lots, and with the plat, the property boundaries will be revised.  The 
area borders two dedicated rights-of-way, Farm Street and CP Johnson Lane.  CP Johnson 
Lane adjacent to this plat is not improved.  Per the Subdivision Ordinance, a subdivider is 
required to improve the portion of the ROW adjacent to their property, which requires the 
property owner to either build or provide fiscal surety for 50 percent of the road improvements. 
With subdivisions, each owner is responsible for their “proportional share.”  The other half of the 
road improvements would be required of the property to the east, when it is developed. The 
property owner is requesting a subdivision variance, on the basis that they are not increasing 
the number of lots or intensity of use. 

 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Per Section 9 – Variance of the Subdivision Ordinance, when a subdivider can show that a 
provision of these regulations would cause necessary hardship if strictly adhered to, an where, 
because of some condition peculiar to the site, and when in the opinion of the City Council, a 
departure may be made without destroying the intent of such provisions the City Council may 
authorize a variance. 

  
 C.P. Johnson Lane is a 32-foot wide unimproved right-of-way.  The property owner will not be 
taking access off of the road, and the road currently dead-ends into the Fairview Cemetery.  The 
number of lots will not be increasing with the subdivision, just reconfigured. Due to these 
reasons, the owner qualifies for a subdivision variance.  The city will retain the ROW as an 
alternative access into the cemetery for maintenance use. 

  



Page 2 of 5  

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Public Hearing and consider action to recommend approval of a subdivision variance to waive 
the requirement of Section 5.20 – Streets, to improve or post fiscal surety for the construction 
of 50 percent of C.P. Johnson Lane, between Farm Street and Fairview Cemetery and forward 
to City Council for consideration at their next meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment 1: Location Map   
Attachment 2: Farms End Final Plat (in review)  



FARM

CP JOHNSON

Location Map
Subdivision Variance
Farms End Estates ³Date: 5/25/2018

The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.     

FARM

SPRING

CP
 JO

HN
SO

N

CP JOHNSON

¬«21
¬«95

¬«150

0 40 8020 Feet




	Planning and Zoning May 31, 2018
	Planning 05-31-2018 Agenda Packet (002)
	April 26 2018 P&Z Meeting Minutes
	2. CITIZEN COMMENTS

	Item 3B - The Colony
	The Colony 1A Section 3 Phase A and B
	Exhibit A-Preliminary Plat
	Attachment 1 - Location Map ColonyMUD-1A Section 3 Phases A&B
	Attachment 2 - Property Owner Notification
	Notice of Pending Subdivision Approval
	City of Bastrop
	Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council


	Item 3C - Copper Shot
	staff report
	TITLE:
	STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:
	ITEM DETAILS:
	BACKGROUND/HISTORY:
	POLICY EXPLANATION:
	PUBLIC COMMENTS:
	RECOMMENDATION:
	ATTACHMENTS:

	Attachment 1 - Location Map
	Attachment 2 - Letter from Applicant
	Attachment 3 - Conceptual Site Plan
	Attachment 4 - Zoning Map
	Attachment 5 - Property Owner Notification

	Item 3D
	Staff Report Quiktrip
	Attachment 1 - Location Map-QuikTrip
	Attachment 2 - Letter from Applicant
	Attachment 3 - Property Owner Notification
	Attachment 4 - Zoning Map
	Attachment 5 - Future Land Use Map
	Attachment 6 - Aerial Location Map

	Item 3E - Farms End
	Staff Report - P&Z - Farms End
	TITLE:
	STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:
	ITEM DETAILS:
	BACKGROUND/HISTORY:
	POLICY EXPLANATION:
	RECOMMENDATION:
	ATTACHMENTS:






